
 

RFP Questions and Clarifications Memorandum  

To: Vendors Responding to RFP Number 3809 for the Mississippi Library Commission 
(MLC) 

From : Craig P. Orgeron, Ph.D. 

Date: December 1, 2015 

Subject:  Responses to Questions Submitted and Clarifications to Specifications 

Contact Name: Patti Irgens 

Contact Phone Number:  601-432-8223 

Contact E-mail Address:  Patti.Irgens@its.ms.gov 

RFP Number 3809 is hereby amended as follows:  
 
1. Section VII Technical Specifications, Item 4 is being modified as follows: 
 

 
 

2. Section VII Technical Specifications, Item 8.3.1 0.1 is being modified to read: 

8.3.10.1 The solution must protect against eavesdropping and unauthorized access. 
The solution may include encryption or other techniques to provide this 
assurance which the local library may turn on or off as local policy indicates. 

3. Attachment 3, State Library Square Footage has b een modified to remove duplicate 
library systems.  

 
Vendor must include in their proposal a response to each amended requirement as listed above.  
Vendor must respond using the same terminology as provided in the original requirements. 

Task  Date 
First Advertisement Date for RFP 10/13/15 
Second Advertisement Date for RFP 10/20/15 
MANDATORY Vendor Conference 11:00 a.m. Central Time on 

10/28/15 
Deadline for Vendor’s Written Questions 3:00 p.m. Central Time on 11/3/15 
Deadline for Questions Answered and 
Posted to ITS Web Site 

 
11/17/15  12/1/2015 

Open Proposals 12/3/15 12/11/2015 
Evaluation of Proposals 12/3/15 12/11/2015 – 1/20/16 
ITS Board Presentation 1/21/16 
Contract Negotiation 1/21/16 – 02/19/16 
Proposed Project Implementation Start-up 07/01/16 
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The following questions were submitted to ITS and are being presented as they were submitted, 
except to remove any reference to a specific vendor.  This information should assist you in 
formulating your response. 
 
Question 1:  Section III, Item 9  
Would it be highly unlikely for ITS would exercise its right to make multiple awards (III.8) and/or to 
make an award “in part” (III.9).   
 
Response: The State will make the award in whatever  manner is in the State’s best 

interest. We do not know the likelihood at this tim e.  
 
Question 2:  Section III, Item 10 
How likely is it that ITS would “use proposals in future projects (III.10) i.e. MDE K12 E-Rate, etc. 
 
Response: There is no way for us to tell how likely  or unlikely it will be to reuse the RFP. 
 
Question 3:  Section IV, Item 13 
Would all P.O.s to the awarded vendor (IV.13) be issued by MLC and not also issued by 
participating libraries?   Would all payments to the vendor (other than any payments made to the 
vendor by USAC) be made by MLC and not also by participating libraries? 
 
Response:  The intent is that MLC will issue all pa yments for all Library Systems that opt-
in to the managed Wi-Fi solution.   
  
Question 4:  Section VII, Item 3.1  
States that this RFP covers 236 libraries, Section VII: 6.4 – states that this RFP covers 238 
libraries.  Which is the correct number of libraries for the system? 
 
Response: There are currently 236 libraries through out the state. 
 
Question 5:  Section VII, Item 3.2.2 
What is meant by: “Professional development at multiple levels” 
 
Response: Please refer to Section VII, Item 6, Scop e of Work.  
 
Question 6:  Section VII, Item 3.3 
“THE WMSP submitting a proposal must describe how it will use subcontractors and local resources 
if awarded the contract…” Please describe what local resources entails? 
 
Response: This would mean individuals/businesses th at are local to the area, and 

employed by the WMSP to complete the project implem entation. 
 
Question 7:  Section VII, Item 6.3 
Please confirm:  Will the Managed wireless service provider winning this rfp need to provide 
“content filtering” or is that provided by AT&T or some other third party (if not AT&T, who?)?  If other 
please explain. 
 
Response: This RFP will not require the successful Vendor to provide content filtering. 
 
Question 8:  Section VII, Item 6.3 
Firewall and Content filtering, to help fully understand the requirements and implications, will the 
State/MLC please provide the following information:  
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o WAN information for all libraries including: 
� Circuit Speed 
� If this is not AT&T at some sites, please state the Carrier and the Connection type 

(MPLS / VPN / P2P / dark fiber) 
� Carrier Information – if other than AT&T 
� Logical topology including any data centers 

o LAN information for all libraries 
� All Switches, Routers, and Firewalls 
� Brand / Model Number / Number of used / unused ports 
� Any existing wireless 
� Cabling specifications per location regarding brand or OEM for warranty purposes 

 
Response: This RFP is for a Managed Wi-Fi solution,  that information is not available. 
 
Question 9:  Section VII, Item 7.5.7.1 
Can different optional cost schedules be selected or called exemption, or most all options be 
provided or exempted? If other please explain. 
 
Response:  If Vendor cannot provide optional items,  they must take exception to that 

requirement as outlined in Section V: Proposal Exce ptions. 
 
Question 10:  Section VII, Item 7.5.7.1 
Will the LAN gear in this section, as well as any wifi gear installed to fulfill any part of this RFP by the 
vendor, be owned by the library itself or will it be owned by the vendor/managed service provider. 
 
Response: LAN equipment is owned by the library.  W i-Fi gear will be owned by the 

awarded Vendor, unless purchased under the option c ost schedule outlined in 
Section VII, Item 7.5.7.1. 

 
Question 11:  Section VII, Item 7.5.7.1 
Which locations already have an installed solution that will only need management and no new 
hardware? Also, can they provide part or model numbers for equipment in each of those locations? 
 
Response: That information is not available, indivi dual library systems have the choice on 

whether they opt-in to the managed Wi-Fi solution.  
 
Question 12:  Section VII, Item 7.5.7.1.4.2 
Please clarify or confirm that minimum wired Ethernet capacity to each installed access point should 
be capable of supporting 1 Gbps, and therefore a minimum of CAT5e structured cabling should be 
used, and that in optional pricing section 7.5.7.1.4.2, you are requesting optional pricing for CAT6a 
cabling. 
 
Response: Each library system will be different.  W e are asking that you provide optional 

pricing that includes cat 6e cabling not cat 6a.  
 
Question 13:  Section VII, Item 7.6 
I wondered if you could provide an answer as to what latitude might be allowed?  
 
Response: Although this is not a “MANDATORY” requir ement, it is preferred. Vendor’s 

may take exception to this requirement and propose an alternative solution. 
 
Question 14:  Section VII, Item 7.6 
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Would this include the surrounding areas such as Clinton, MS or does the physical address have to 
reside within Jackson, MS? 
 
Response:  Yes, this includes the Jackson Metro are a. 
 
Question 15:  Section VII, Item 7.8.1 
If bidder has solid experience performing services of similar scope and size without having “In-State” 
personnel 

� Will bidder have a compliant response if they do not have “In-State” personnel?  
� Will bidder be awarded at least “Meets Requirement” points for this section if all of their 

personnel ? 
� Are there additional incentive points awarded for using “In-State” personnel? 

 
Response: Using in-state personnel will result in a  “meets specification requirement”, 

alternative solution will be evaluated on a per res ponse basis. 
 
Question 16:  Section VII, Item 7.8.5 
Please describe if local resources must be local to the State of Mississippi or may be national VARs, 
as well.  
 
Response:  Local resources, are those individuals/b usiness that are local to the area. 
 
Question 17:  Section VII, Item 7.8.5 
Subcontractors, has an “expectation that local resources will assist” 

� How many points are assigned for using Local Resources? 
� Can bidder still be awarded “Meet Requirement” points if subcontracts are not local? 
� Are there incentive points for using Local Resources? 

 
Response: Using local resources will result in a “m eets specification requirement”, 

alternative solution will be evaluated on a per res ponse basis. 
 
Question 18:  Section VII, Item 7.8.8 
Please provide a list of the MLC personnel role and whom will be collaborating with the awarded 
vendor.  
 
Response:  A complete contact list will be provided  to the Awarded Vendor. 
 
Question 19:  Section VII, Item 7.9.1 
What deliverables are needed for stipulated site surveys?  Please describe in full. 
 
Response: Deliverables will be different for each l ibrary system.  The awarded Vendor will 

be responsible for working with MLC and those libra ry systems that opt-in to 
determine what deliverables are required. 

 
Question 20:  Section VII, Item 7.9.8.1 
What deliverables are needed for stipulated testing?  Please describe in full. 
 
Response: The awarded Vendor will be responsible fo r testing and working with MLC and 

those library systems that opt-in.  
 
Question 21:  Section VII, Item 7.9.10 
Per VII.7.9.10. the vendor may be asked to manage an existing wireless system that has already 
been installed, and per 7.9.10.1 the vendor must integrate new hardware and software with existing 
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network for each participating site.  What is MLC's best guess at the percentage of: (1) the switch 
installed base; and (2) the wireless installed base that each manufacturer currently holds?  
 
Response:  MLC does not have this information avail able.   
 
Question 22:  Section VII, Item 7.9.11 
Please provide a listing of the technical staff assigned to each public library or system.  
 
Response: A complete contact list will be provided to the Awarded Vendor. 
 
Question 23:  Section VII, Item 7.9.11.1 
What deliverables are needed for stipulated training?  Please describe in full. 
 
Response: Please refer to Section VII, Item 9.2.7. 
 
Question 24:  Section VII, Item 7.9.11.1 
Training listed in 7.9.11.1 is for end user oriented training only, or does it also include management 
and maintenance related training and activities? 
 
Response: Both, however management and maintenance related training would be 

limited to the larger library systems that have exp erience in managing their 
own Wi-Fi solutions.  The majority of library syste ms will not require 
management training. 

 
Question 25:  Section VII, Item 7.9.14.2 
What are the libraries typical work schedules? (Days of the week, hours of the day, etc.) Scenario: 
Outage occurs at 7:20PM on week night and customer is to be operational by 8AM following work 
day and Vendor does not have the capability to enter facility until following work day.  Are there 
concessions for these types of incidents? 
 
Response:  Section VII, item 8.3.4.3 outlines the p rocedure to follow for downtime of 

systems.  The successful Vendor must accommodate th e library schedules 
and needs.  

 
Question 26:  Section VII, Item 7.9.17 
Does the State purchase and hold paper on the equipment that will be used by the MSP, or does 
the MSP own the infrastructure and lease service to the State? Section 7.9.17, is the MSP required 
to provide technology refreshes to the system post-installation and agreed sign-off, or does the 
State purchase any updated technology refresh options post-install?  
 
Response: The Wi-Fi equipment will be owned by the awarded Vendor.  The awarded 

Vendor will be required to provide technology refre shes to the system post-
installation. Please refer to Section VII, Item 8.2 .4.5.1 

 
Question 27:  Section VII, Item 7.9.17.2 
Please describe your interpretation of “Proprietary aspects”. 
 
Response: MLC is looking for a solution that adhere s to industry standards, not a single 

source, or sole source solution. 
 
Question 28:  Section VII, Item 7.9.20 
Are Billing Reports the sole obligation of the MSP? Not the Manufacturer?  Is there a preference in 
format? 
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Response: All billing will occur through the awarde d Vendor, not the manufacturer.  

Please refer to Section VII, Item 7.9.20 Billing, f or the requirements. 
 
Question 29:  Section VII, Item 8.2 
Can an alternate management solution comparable to Solarwinds Orion be provided as part of the 
solution for monitoring the WLAN system? 
 
Response: While Solarwinds is the preferred monitor ing solution an alternate 

management solution will be considered. 
 
Question 30:  Section VII, Item 8.2 
Is the management solution a requirement when the Vendor is contracted to provide complete 
management of the system? 
 
Response: The wireless solution will provide the ab ility for libraries to view reports, get 

real-time statistics, and engage in management of t he service via a single 
interface. This should include the ability of libra ry systems to turn off the 
wireless access points at designated times. 

 
Question 31:  Section VII, Item 8.2 
Where does the management system reside if provided to the State? 
 
Response: The State will not house the management s ystem, it will depend on each 

Library System. 
 
Question 32:  Section VII, Item 8.2 
Does the public SSID require any user authentication via captive portal or 802.1X? Is that 
authentication system already in place, or is that a component to be supplied at part of the overall 
solution? 
 
Response: Some libraries will require a username/pa ssword authentication on the 

PUBLIC SSID.  Some libraries will require an accept ance page and no 
username/password via captive portal. It is a compo nent to be supplied as 
part of the overall solution. 

 
Question 33:  Section VII, Item 8.2 
Is the certificate management infrastructure already in place for managing the State’s authentication 
certificates used for wireless authentication/encryption? 
 
Response: No, MLC does not have certificate managem ent in place. 
 
Question 34:  Section VII, Item 8.2 
Are Wireless roaming expectations are limited to only the interior of the building, and do not include 
exterior areas? (8.2.5.3 indicates exterior may also be required) 
 
Response: A small percentage of the libraries requi re coverage to exterior areas such as 

patio’s and the parking lot. 
 
Question 35:  Section VII, Item 8.2.3 
Are any of these locations Historic Landmarks 

� If so, can bidder price this separately depending on unique requirements through an 
SOW after award 
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Response: We have several libraries that are histor ic landmarks.  (Yazoo, Noxubee 

County, e.g.).  Yes,  we would have to allow separa te pricing.   
 
Question 36:  Section VII, Item 8.2.4.3 
Is the requirement for the “site survey” active or predictive 
 
Response: Site surveys will be done on a case by ca se basis depending on the Library 

system. 
 
Question 37:  Section VII, Item 8.2.4.5 
Is there a minimum measured signal strength for 5GHz connectivity as well, or only for 2.4GHz (-
70dbm)? 
 
Response: No, there is not a minimum signal strengt h for 5Ghz. 
 
Question 38:  Section VII, Item 8.2.4.5.3 
We understand the request for Wi-Fi service should provide both 2.4GHz and 5Ghz coverage. 
However, section 8.2.4.5.3 only specifies a minimum coverage of -70 dBm as measured in the 
2.4GHz spectrum. Is it the intent of the solicitation to provide both 2.4GHz AND 5GHz coverage at a 
minimum of -70 dBm in all specified areas? This is specifically important for adequate 802.11AC 
coverage, as 802.11AC is only available on 5GHz. 
 
Response: The intent is to provide both.   
 
Question 39:  Section VII, Item 8.2.4.5.6 
Will the State be providing up to date, floor plans for each facility in order to meet the graphical heat 
map requirement contained in 8.2.4.5.6? 
 
Response: Floor plans are not available, site surve ys will be completed once an awarded 

Vendor is  in place and the library system has chos en to opt-in. 
  
Question 40:  Section VII, Item 8.2.6.1 
Please describe your definition of “sufficient, measureable and necessary bandwidth.”  
 
Response:  Please refer to Section VII, Item 8.3 Pe rformance and Quality. 
 
Question 41:  Section VII, Item 8.2.6.1 
How would “sufficient and necessary bandwidth” values be quantified, since Internet access is 
provided by the Library’s existing ISP and is not part of the overall system provided? 
 
Response: MLC is looking for a commercial grade man aged solution. 
 
Question 42:  Section VII, Item 8.2.6.1 
Please provide a chart of the current Internet bandwidth allocated to each public library (not system). 
 
Response: This information is not available.  
 
Question 43:  Section VII, Item 8.3 
UPS uptime requirements do not specify a certain time delay, only that on-site servers can be 
gracefully shut down before power is lost, correct?, 
 
Response: Yes, that is correct. 
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Question 44:  Section VII, Item 8.3.3.6 
Is requirement 8.3.3.6 used for the acceptance testing? Throughput rates will vary depending on 
distance and installation specifics. 
 
Response:  Yes, we realize throughput rates will va ry. 
 
Question 45:  Section VII, Item 8.3.11.2 
Since the AT&T Internet connection is handling web content filtering, logs retained in compliance 
with CIPA do not specifically relate to content filtering, only network connectivity events, correct? 
 
Response:  Yes, that is correct.    
 
Question 46:  Section VII, Item 8.3.5.1 
Please describe what is considered unreasonable delay if there are limitations in the bandwidth at 
each location.  What is the expectation of service per user, per location? 
 
Response:   Service that is usual and customary and  meets user expectations when 

compared to user experience with similar public wir eless implementations. 
 
Question 47:  Section VII, Item 8.3.6 
Theft or loss is not generally considered a catastrophic event.  Is the spirit of this section to cover 
catastrophic events?   
 
Response: MLC is requesting a BC/DR plan to cover r eplacement of hardware and other 

solution elements in the event of theft, or loss du e a catastrophic event. 
  
Question 48:  Section VII, Item 8.3.6 
What type of catastrophic events would you want covered in a BCDR plan?  Please provide a list if 
possible?   
 
Response: A catastrophic event is defined as any ev ent or force of nature that has 

catastrophic consequences, such as earthquake, floo d, forest fire, hurricane, 
lightning, or tornado . 

 
Question 49:  Section VII, Item 8.3.7.1 
Is MLC requiring redundant WAPs and Switches at each location to accommodate the requirements 
of hardware failure redundancy?  
 
Response:  No, redundant WAP’s are not required at each location.  Equipment will need 

to be replaced in a timely manner. 
 
Question 50:  Section VII, Item 8.3.8.3 
What is considered an appropriate amount of time for staff to shut down infrastructure hardware if 
power outage? 
 
Response:  MLC would like to have at least 10 minut es to get everything shut down. 
 
Question 51:  Section VII, Item 8.3.10.1 
Please describe in what use case the library will require the ability to turn off or on an encryption 
policy? 
 
Response:   Please see revised Section VII, Item 8. 3.10.1. 



Page 9 of 17 
 

 
Question 52:  Section VII, Item 8.3.11.1 
Please describe the term “usage logs” or what is expected to be contained within the usage logs 
within this section. 
 
Response:  Network connectivity sessions such as SS ID’s, MAC addresses, etc. 
 
Question 53:  Section VII, Item 9.2.6 
Is there an existing formal organization that library personnel are associated with? What is the 
regional structure in which they are affiliated?  If there is no current organization or structure, can 
you provide details on the regional training structure that would be desired? 
 
Response:  There are currently 52 Library systems w ithin the state.  Training should take 

place at each library once the equipment has been i nstalled. Those requiring 
additional training such as admin training would ne ed training at their 
headquarters library.   

 
Question 54:  Section VII, Item 12.2.1 
Who will be reviewing the proposals for scoring? ITS or MLC or another group? 
 
Response:  Please refer to  Section VII, Item 12.1.   
 
Question 55:  Section VII, Item 12.2.2.1 
What is included in the non-cost evaluation? Is this a pilot mock-up of a single library 
implementation, or do multiple site mock-ups need to be provided? What is the time duration for the 
evaluation? 
 
Response:  Please refer to Section VII, Item 12.1.4 . 
 
Question 56:  Section VII, Item 12.2.2.1 
Is there a rubric or testing sheet for grading sub categories in the non cost evaluation areas of : 
Vendor Qualifications, References, Training/Support 
 
Response:  10 = Vendor's response exceeds the requi rement; 9 = Vendor's response 

meets the requirement, but does not exceed it; 7 = Vendor’s response meets 
the requirement, but the description is not as thor ough as desired or may 
present some risks; 5 = Vendor's response minimally  meets the requirement 
by use of an alternative solution that may present an acceptable level of risk; 3 
= Vendor’s response did not meet the requirement bu t vendor proposes a 
work-around that presents a high level of risk; 0 =  Vendor did not respond to 
the requirement or solution proposed was not accept able.    

 
Question 57:  Section VII, Item 12.2.2.1 

A. How will each category be evaluated on whether they “meet specs” for the 90%?   
B. What is the methodology used?   
C. Can a “bake off” or “Field” test of equipment in a real world situation be used?  Concern here 

is that  time and money could be lost on proposals that claim to meet specs on paper but 
don’t perform to specs in the field?   

D. Also will third party reporting agencies such as Gartner’s be used in the evaluation? 
 
Response:  A & B: See the response to question 56 a bove. The score for all responses will 

be totaled and compared to the available total poin ts. 
C: As outlined in Section VII, Item 12.4.1 On-site demonstrations may be used. 
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D: Any information available to the evaluation team  may be used.  
 
Question 58:  General 
Will there be a time to request clarification of any answers to the proposed questions if needed? 
 
Response: No additional clarification will be given . 
 
Question 59:  General 
Will the State/MLC consider a “as a Service” response? 
 
Response:  MLC is open to an “as a Service” option.  
 
Question 60:  General 
Please describe the payment terms that the MLC will utilize once the contract has been award 
(monthly recurring for all costs, equipment paid upfront, monthly recurring charge for support only, 
60-month lease for all services and equipment, etc.) 
 
Response: This will be decided with the Vendor duri ng contract negotiations. 
 
Question 61:  General 
I want to make sure that we understand the RFP to understand that you have to bid the whole thing, 
that you can’t just bid on part of it? 
 
Response: Vendor’s are required to bid the entire R FP, exception can be taken as 

outlined in Section V, Proposal Exceptions. 
 
Question 62:  General 
Do they have floorplans for each of the locations? We noticed the Square footage only. 
 
Response: Floor plans are not available; site surve ys will be required once an awarded 

Vendor is in place. 
 
Question 63:  General 
For the new locations – Are you preferential to any specific brand preference on the APs? 
 
Response: MLC does not have a preference on Access Points. 
 
Question 64:  General 
Estimated users on the network? Please include maximum, mean, and times that are anticipated as 
high usage. 
 
Response: That information is not available. 
 
RFP Responses are due December 11, 2015, at 3:00 p.m. (Central Time). 
 
If you have any questions concerning the information above or if we can be of further assistance, 
please contact Patti Irgens at 601-432-8223 or via email at Patti.Irgens@its.ms.gov. 

 

cc:  ITS Project File Number 41594 
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Attachment 3 
State Library Square Footage  

Library System Name Branch Name 
Square 
footage 

BENTON COUNTY LIBRARY Bond Memorial Library 5360 
BENTON COUNTY LIBRARY Hickory Flat Public Library 4,826 
BLACKMUR MEMORIAL LIBRARY Blackmur Memorial Library 3,331 
BOLIVAR COUNTY LIBRARY Benoit Public Library 800 
BOLIVAR COUNTY LIBRARY Gunnison Public Library 450 
BOLIVAR COUNTY LIBRARY Mound Bayou Public Library 450 
BOLIVAR COUNTY LIBRARY Dr. Robert T. Hollingsworth Public Library 

5,000 
BOLIVAR COUNTY LIBRARY Rosedale Public Library 2,000 
BOLIVAR COUNTY LIBRARY Thelma Rayner Memorial Library 400 
BOLIVAR COUNTY LIBRARY Robinson-Carpenter Memorial Library - 

Headquarters 25,000 
BOLIVAR COUNTY LIBRARY Field Memorial Library 500 
CARNEGIE PUBLIC LIBRARY Carnegie Public Library of Clarksdale and 

Coahoma County 20,800 
CARROLL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY Carrollton North-Carrollton Public Library System 

- Headquarters 2,400 
CARROLL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY Vaiden Public Library 3,192 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY G. Chastain Flynt Memorial Library 25,562 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Pearl Public Library 24,598 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Brandon Public Library 20,000 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Puckett Public Library 2,490 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Pelahatchie Public Library 2,400 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Morton Public Library 5,095 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Forest Public Library 16,824 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Sandhill Public Library 2,940 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Richland Public Library 6,720 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Northwest Point Reservoir Library 2,600 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Florence Public Library 5,800 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Sebastopol Public Library 975 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Lake Public Library 1,200 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Magee Public Library 10,540 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Mendenhall Public Library 3,442 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Evon A. Ford Public Library 3,736 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Floyd J. Robinson Memorial Library 3,700 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Polkville Public Library 1,450 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY R. T. Prince Memorial Library 1,216 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Harrisville Public Library 800 
COLUMBUS-LOWNDES PUBLIC LIBRARY Columbus Public Library - Headquarters 28,000 
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Library System Name Branch Name 
Square 
footage 

COLUMBUS-LOWNDES PUBLIC LIBRARY Artesia Public Library 
1,560 

COLUMBUS-LOWNDES PUBLIC LIBRARY Caledonia Public Library 2,760 
COLUMBUS-LOWNDES PUBLIC LIBRARY Crawford Public Library 936 
COPIAH-JEFFERSON REGIONAL LIBRARY J.T. Biggs Memorial Library 7,000 
COPIAH-JEFFERSON REGIONAL LIBRARY Jefferson County Library 2,691 
COPIAH-JEFFERSON REGIONAL LIBRARY Georgetown Public Library 2,905 
COPIAH-JEFFERSON REGIONAL LIBRARY George W Covington Memorial Library - 

Headquarters 6,902 
COPIAH-JEFFERSON REGIONAL LIBRARY Longie Dale Memorial Library 

1,600 
Covington County Library System R. E. Blackwell Memorial Library - Headquarters 

4,000 
Covington County Library System Conner Graham Memorial Library 

2,400 
Covington County Library System Jane Blain Brewer Memorial 

1,800 
DIXIE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Pontotoc County Library - Headquarters 12,000 
DIXIE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Jesse Yancy Memorial Library 

3,970 
DIXIE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Calhoun City Library 

2,280 
DIXIE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Edmondson Memorial Library 1,970 
DIXIE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Okolona Carnegie Library 3,580 
DIXIE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Houston Carnegie Library 3,940 
DIXIE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Houlka Public Library 1,023 
DIXIE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Sherman Public Library 2,500 
EAST MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Bay Springs Municipal Library 2,501 
EAST MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Quitman Public Library - Headquarters 5,353 
EAST MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Enterprise Public Library 822 
EAST MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Mary Weems Parker Memorial Library 3,100 
EAST MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Pachuta Public Library 757 
EAST MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Stonewall Public Library 1,846 
ELIZABETH JONES LIBRARY Elizabeth Jones Library 12,740 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Hernando Public Library - Headquarters 

30,000 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY B.J. Chain Public Library 

19,000 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Lafayette County & Oxford Public Library 26,300 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Batesville Public Library 

15,784 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Sardis Public Library 

6,136 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY M.R. Dye Public library 

10,964 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Walls Public Library 

10,000 
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Library System Name Branch Name 
Square 
footage 

FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Robert C. Irwin Public Library 13,320 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Jessie J. Edwards Public Library 6,030 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Senatobia Public Library  10,513 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Sam Lapidus Memorial Public Library 2,856 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY Emily Jones Pointer Public Library  4,800 
FIRST REGIONAL LIBRARY M. R. Davis Public Library  43,000 
GREENWOOD-LEFLORE PUBLIC LIBRARY Greenwood-Leflore Public Library - 

Headquarters 16,000 
GREENWOOD-LEFLORE PUBLIC LIBRARY Jodie E Wilson Branch Library 

2,267 
HANCOCK COUNTY LIBRARY Bay Saint Louis-Hancock County Library - 

Headquarters 18,000 
HANCOCK COUNTY LIBRARY Waveland Public Library 7,623 
HANCOCK COUNTY LIBRARY Kiln Public Library 

10,008 
HANCOCK COUNTY LIBRARY Charles B. Murphy Pearlington Public Library 7,679 
HANCOCK COUNTY LIBRARY East Hancock Public Library 7,000 
HARRIETTE PERSON MEMORIAL LIBRARY Harriette Person Memorial Library 

8,000 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM West Biloxi Library 

10,000 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Jerry Lawrence Memorial Library 6,651 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Orange Grove Library - Headquarters 33,000 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Margaret Sherry Library 12,500 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Pass Christian Library 12,500 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Woolmarket Library 960 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Biloxi Public Library 22,000 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Saucier Children's Library 1,400 
HARRISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Gulfport Library 10,000 
HUMPHREYS COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Humphreys County Library 4,320 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Eudora Welty Library - Headquarters 45,000 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Margaret Walker Alexander Library 10,911 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Ella Bess Austin Library 4,017 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM R.G. Bolden/Anna Bell-Moore Library 4,180 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Beverly J. Brown Library 4,000 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Medgar Evers Library 11,884 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Lois A. Flagg Library 3,022 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Fannie Lou Hamer Library 1,568 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Annie T. Jeffers Library 1,679 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Evelyn T. Majure Library 

3,000 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Willie Morris Library 

12,000 
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JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Quisenberry Library 26,094 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Raymond Library 4,044 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Charles W. Tisdale Lilbrary 6,800 
JACKSON/HINDS LIBRARY SYSTEM Richard Wright Library 10,200 
JACKSON-GEORGE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM East Central Public Library 7,302 
JACKSON-GEORGE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Kathleen McIlwain Public Library of Gautier 9,500 
JACKSON-GEORGE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Lucedale-George County Public Library 8,723 
JACKSON-GEORGE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Ina Thompson Moss Point Library 11,800 
JACKSON-GEORGE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Ocean Springs Municipal Library 

15,500 
JACKSON-GEORGE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Pascagoula Public Library - Headquarters 

41,000 
JACKSON-GEORGE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM St. Martin Public Library 8,500 
JACKSON-GEORGE REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM Vancleave Public Library 7,950 
JUDGE ARMSTRONG LIBRARY Judge George W Armstrong Library 

22,257 
KEMPER-NEWTON REGIONAL LIBRARY Union Public Library 6,263 
KEMPER-NEWTON REGIONAL LIBRARY DeKalb Public Library 1,075 
KEMPER-NEWTON REGIONAL LIBRARY Jessie Mae Everett Public Library 1,075 
KEMPER-NEWTON REGIONAL LIBRARY J Elliott McMullan Library 4,645 
KEMPER-NEWTON REGIONAL LIBRARY Scooba Public Library 750 
LAMAR COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Lumberton Public Library 3,944 
LAMAR COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Purvis Public Library 

5,119 
LAMAR COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Oak Grove Public Library 6,420 
LAMAR COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM L. R. Boyer Memorial Library 3,526 
LAUREL-JONES COUNTY LIBRARY Laurel-Jones County Library - Headquarters 23,877 
LAUREL-JONES COUNTY LIBRARY Ellisville Public Library 

4,000 
LEE-ITAWAMBA LIBRARY SYSTEM Lee County Library - Headquarters 37,800 
LEE-ITAWAMBA LIBRARY SYSTEM Itawamba County Pratt Memorial Library 

8,663 
LINCOLN-LAWRENCE-FRANKLIN REGIONAL LIBRARY Lincoln County Library - Headquarters 20,000 
LINCOLN-LAWRENCE-FRANKLIN REGIONAL LIBRARY New Hebron Public Library 

2,560 
LINCOLN-LAWRENCE-FRANKLIN REGIONAL LIBRARY Lawrence County Public Library 5,200 
LINCOLN-LAWRENCE-FRANKLIN REGIONAL LIBRARY Franklin County Public Library 4,600 
LONG BEACH PUBLIC LIBRARY Long Beach Public Library 9,800 
MADISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Madison County-Canton Public Library - 

Headquarters 19,000 
MADISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Elsie Jurgens Memorial Library 10,700 
MADISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Flora Public Library 8,000 
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MADISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Paul E. Griffin Library 
5,500 

MADISON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Rebecca Baine Rigby Library 
9,141 

MARKS-QUITMAN COUNTY LIBRARY MARKS-QUITMAN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
1,741 

MARSHALL COUNTY LIBRARY Marshall County Library - Headquarters 
7,169 

MARSHALL COUNTY LIBRARY Potts Camp Library 1,956 
MARSHALL COUNTY LIBRARY Ruth B. French Library 1,800 
MERIDIAN-LAUDERDALE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY Meridian-Lauderdale Public Library 

33,400 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Attala County Library - Headquarters 

21,406 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Carthage-Leake County Library 10,800 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Duck Hill Public Library 1,706 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Durant Public Library 6,079 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Goodman Public Library 1,919 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Kilmichael Public Library 2,359 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Lexington Public Library 4,220 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Pickens Public Library 1,771 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Tchula Public Library 4,092 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Walnut Grove Public Library 5,462 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY West Public Library 3,599 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Winona-Montgomery County Library 9,531 
MID-MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Winston County Library 11,233 
MISSISSIPPI LIBRARY COMMISSION Mississippi Library Commission 59,313 
NESHOBA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY Neshoba County Public Library 11,554 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Anne Spencer Cox Library 4,045 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Belmont Library 2,540 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Blue Mountain Library 

682 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Burnsville Library 1,800 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Chalybeate Library  1,500 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Corinth Library - Headquarters 22,460 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY George E. Allen Library 11,000 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Iuka Library  9,150 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Marietta Library 165 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Rienzi Library  832 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Ripley Public Library 5,184 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Tishomingo Public Library  

1,200 
NORTHEAST REGIONAL LIBRARY Walnut Public Library  

2,354 
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NOXUBEE COUNTY LIBRARY Ada Session Fant Memorial - Headquarters 5,000 
NOXUBEE COUNTY LIBRARY Vista J. Daniels 900 
NOXUBEE COUNTY LIBRARY Brooksville Public Library 900 
PEARL RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Margaret Reed Crosby Memorial Library 13,000 
PEARL RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Poplarville Public Library 

5,000 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM McComb Public Library - Headquarters 21,410 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM Alpha Center Library 1,355 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM Magnolia Public Library 

2,720 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM Osyka Public Library 630 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM Progress Public Library 2,257 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM Crosby Public Library 540 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM Gloster Public Library 5,411 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM Liberty Public Library 2,880 
PIKE-AMITE-WALTHALL LIBRARY SYSTEM Walthall County Library 8,442 
PINE FOREST REGIONAL LIBRARY William Estes Powell Memorial Library 3,500 
PINE FOREST REGIONAL LIBRARY New Augusta Public Library 1,600 
PINE FOREST REGIONAL LIBRARY Richton Public Library - Headquarters 4,048 
PINE FOREST REGIONAL LIBRARY Stone County Library 4,120 
PINE FOREST REGIONAL LIBRARY William & Dolores Mauldin Library 2,800 
PINE FOREST REGIONAL LIBRARY State Line Public Library 1,072 
PINE FOREST REGIONAL LIBRARY McLain Public Library 1,540 
PINE FOREST REGIONAL LIBRARY Leakesville Public Library 2,700 
SHARKEY-ISSAQUENA LIBRARY SYSTEM Sharkey-Issaquena County Library 7,500 
SOUTH MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY South MS Library System - Columbia-Marion 

County Public Library - Headquarters 
   

11,500 
SOUTH MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Prentiss Public Library 3,496 
SOUTH MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LIBRARY Dr. Frank L. Leggett Public Library 2,541 
STARKVILLE-OKTIBBEHA COUNTY LIBRARY SY Starkville Public Library - Headquarters 20,600 
STARKVILLE-OKTIBBEHA COUNTY LIBRARY SY Maben Public Library 

5,500 
STARKVILLE-OKTIBBEHA COUNTY LIBRARY SY Sturgis Public Library 3,500 
SUNFLOWER COUNTY LIBRARY Drew Public Library 3,200 
SUNFLOWER COUNTY LIBRARY Horace Stansel Library 4,286 
SUNFLOWER COUNTY LIBRARY Inverness Public Library 1,800 
SUNFLOWER COUNTY LIBRARY Kathy June Sherrif Public Library 

500 
SUNFLOWER COUNTY LIBRARY Henry M Seymour Library - Headquarters 11,710 
TALLAHATCHIE COUNTY Charleston Public Library 

7,166 
TALLAHATCHIE COUNTY Tutwiler Public Library 

2,552 
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THE LIBRARY OF HATTIESBURG, PETAL & FORREST C Hattiesburg Public Library - Headquarters 54,000 
THE LIBRARY OF HATTIESBURG, PETAL & FORREST C Petal Public Library 

7,000 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Bryan Public Library - Headquarters 13,620 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Amory Municipal Library 8,080 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Evans Memorial Library 5,320 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Choctaw County Public Library 3,200 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Dorothy J. Lowe Memorial Library 1,400 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Weir Public Library 760 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Wren Public Library 800 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Webster County Public Library 3,844 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Mathiston Public Library 2,448 
TOMBIGBEE REGIONAL LIBRARY Hamilton Public Library 1,378 
UNION COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Jennie Stephens Smith Library - Headquarters 9,000 
UNION COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Nance-McNeely Memorial Library 2,400 
WARREN COUNTY-VICKSBURG PUBLIC LIBRARY WarrenCounty-Vicksburg Public Library 36,600 
WASHINGTON COUNTY LIBRARY Arcola Library 720 
WASHINGTON COUNTY LIBRARY Avon Library 715 
WASHINGTON COUNTY LIBRARY Glen Allan Library 2,200 
WASHINGTON COUNTY LIBRARY Torrey Wood Memorial Library 1,315 
WASHINGTON COUNTY LIBRARY Leland Library 1,700 
WASHINGTON COUNTY LIBRARY William Alexander Percy Memorial Library - 

Headquarters 27,000 
WASHINGTON COUNTY LIBRARY Alfred Rankins Memorial Library 700 
WAYNESBORO-WAYNE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM Waynesboro-Wayne County Library 17,000 
WILKINSON COUNTY WOODVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY Wilkinson County Woodville Public Library - 

Headquarters 4,128 
WILKINSON COUNTY WOODVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY Kevin Poole Van Cleave Memorial Library 3,500 
YALOBUSHA COUNTY LIBRARY Coffeeville Public Library - Headquarters 

1,886 
YALOBUSHA COUNTY LIBRARY Oakland Public Library 1,500 
YAZOO LIBRARY ASSOCIATION Yazoo Library Association 21,525 
WILKINSON COUNTY WOODVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY Wilkinson County Woodville Public Library - 

Headquarters 4,128 
WILKINSON COUNTY WOODVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY Kevin Poole Van Cleave Memorial Library 

3,500 
YALOBUSHA COUNTY LIBRARY Coffeeville Public Library - Headquarters 

1,886 
YALOBUSHA COUNTY LIBRARY Oakland Public Library 1,500 
YAZOO LIBRARY ASSOCIATION Yazoo Library Association 21,525 

 


